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The Joseph Spaulding house of 1828 stands on a slight
rise in an old residential section of Pawtucket near the
city center. It originally overlooked the Blackstone
River and the historic Slater and Wilkinson mills; but
Interstate Route 95 has recently cut through this section
(several blocks to the north and west of the house), ob-
scuring both the view and the neighborhood's close historic
relationship to the rest of the city.

The Spaulding house faces due south and is set back
only slightly from the sidewalk of Fruit Street, at its
northeast corner with South Street. It is a five-bay, story-
and-a-half, clapboarded structure with a large central brick
chimney and full basement. This basement, with thick dry-
stone walls, has always been used as a ground floor and has
a full-height door opening on the west wall, where the land
slopes away to the north and west. A one-story gableroofed
ell was added on the north about 1850.

The original section of the house has crisp federal de-
tailing within and without. The front facade has four six-
over-six double-hung windows (modern sash) with flat frames
evenly spaced flanking the central door. One of the few
significant alterations to the house was the removal of the
original door-frame and the addition of a flat Victerian
hood supported by sawn consoles. The present owners, after
careful structural analysis, have restored the door frame to
the federal style copied from a contemporaneous house nearby
at 316 Roosevelt Avenue. Slender paired panelled Doric pil-
asters, separated by four-paned sidelights, flank the six-
panel door (also a restoration, copied from the original
front door which had been cut down for use in the basement).
Above the lights and door is a wide entablature with triple
molded architrave and molded cornice. framed into and match-
ing the original cornice of the house. The vertical line
established by the pilasters is continued by raised panels
with incised herringbone patterns in the frieze, around which
the architrave .and cornice moldings break out and flare.

Within, the house follows with one slight variation the

five-room floor plan typical of central -chimney houses. In
the generous entry hall a short curving staircase with curly

(See Continuation Sheet # 1)
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maple stair treads, rises to the second flodor. Its arched hand-
rail, on slender rectangular balusters, and interior baseboard echo
the curve of the staircase itself. The space beneath the stairs,
originally open, was closed in when a staircase to the cellar

was installed here about 1840, when the house held two families.

The southwest parlor has the finest detail of any in the
house, retaining the original molded chair-rails and baseboards,
the complex molded six-panelled doors, the built-in full-height
cupboard on the north wall, and the elegantly-detailed mantel.
This mantel has slender paired engaged Doric columns on each
side of the fireplace opening, which support a wide flat entabla-
ture with raised end panels which continue the vertical line of
the columns and flare boldly into a series of complex moldings
breaking out above them and swelling up to the mantel shelf it-
self., This use of complex cornice moldings to cap the vertical
line established by the columns is similar to the restoration of
the front door. The baroque boldness and flare of these molding
contrasts effectively with the federal delicacy of the columns.

The southeast parlor suffered several alterations, most of
which have been undone by the present owners. In the Victorian
period a black marble firefront was inserted in the original
fireplace opening and the walls were replastered. In the mid-
twentieth century bookcases set upon enclosed cupboards were in-
stalled on the full width of the east wall. Current restoration
work has retained these bookcases, but has removed the firefront,
uncovered the original, open, slant-back cupboard above the
fireplace, and installed a new molded mantel shelf and fireplace
wall panelling appropriate to the period of the house.

Behind this parlor is what was originally a small simply-
appointed bedroom. At its rear is the back entry hall leading
“to the 1850 north wing which housed a new kitchen. West of the
bedroom is the back staircase to the second floor. The stairs
to the basement were originally placed directly beneath, but
were relocated about 1840, and the space reused for a closet.

Victorian period alterations to the original kitchen, the
central north room (see floor plan), made careful analysis and
restoration work necessary. The original fireplace, with bake-
oven and wood-storage compartment beside it, had been plastered

(See Continuation Sheet #2)
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over and the hearth removed. Recent work has included opening the
flreplace and installing a simple mantel copied from the original
mantel in the basement summer kitchen. In addition, the hearth
has been rebuilt with old brick rescued from a contemporary
Pawtucket house demolished in 1957.

Occupying the northwest corner of the house is a fairly
small room which was originally divided in two the most north-
erly section serving as a pantry or buttery and the other as
a weaving room.

The second floor originally consisted of four bedrooms, (one
with a small fireplace,) and an open storage room with original
built-in closet behind the chimney. A partition added about 1840,
perpendicular to the north face of the chimney, has recently been
removed to restore this original configuration.

One of the most interesting aspects of Joseph Spaulding's
house is the basement. The eastern half of the basement has small
high window openings and was used as a root cellar. Because of the
slope of the land, however, the western half of the basement has
normal-sized double- hung windows, and was used from the start as
a summer kitchen, with a small entry room and a pantry accessible
on the north. Orlglnally lathed and plastered, the kitchen and
the pantry both retain their early finish. The windowless pantry
is still lined with wide hand-planed shelves; and the summer
kitchen still displays in fine condition (now that the modern
heating ducts have been re-routed) its generous. hearth, cook-
ing fireplace, and beehive bake oven. The simple mantel, with
its broad flat surround defined by a crisp applied molding strip
and molded shelf, served as the model for the upstairs kitchen
mantel restoration.

Old stone foundations extend to the north of the original
house, and partly:under the 1850 ell, suggesting the existence,
in Spaulding's day, of some kind of shed extension, possibly
for the chaise Spaulding is known to have owned. Whatever other
structures may have stood on the property have long since van-
ished. Much of Spaulding's original tract of land, which stretched
several blocks northward, has been sold for development and heavily

(See Continuation Sheet #3)
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built up. Except for a terrace and lawn on the west, Joseph
Spaulding's house is closely surrounded by other, generally later,
city dwellings.

The Spaulding House fortunately has escaped the blight of al-
teration and deterioration which so often occur in older city
nieghborhoods. It stands today handsomely restored and one of
Pawtucket's best-cared-for federal style buildings.
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.. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Urban renewal in residential areas and in the heart of

Pawtucket, and the cutting through of Interstate Route 95,

have removed many of the city's older structures. Those
“that remain are generally in sadly altered or deteriorated
‘condition, or in isolated and/or dislecated neighborhoods.
‘Fortunately Joseph Spaulding's handsome and well-built house of
1828 stands in its original location and is now excellently re-
"stored.

Its present owners in extensive research have established
that Joseph Spaulding was born (in 1797) and educated in
Plainfield, Connecticut. Upon graduation from Plainfield
Academy in 1815 he moved with his mother to what was then
Seekonk, Massachusetts, where he entered a five-year appren-

“ticeship with Amos Read of Pawtucket to learn the trade of
cabinetmaking. For a short period therefore,. he had a
"Cabinet and Chair Maker's Shop'" at '"Seekonk Cove,'" which

. premises ' he advertised for sale in 1822.

In 1823 he leased land in Pawtucket to set up a cabinet
maker's shop there. Pawtucket was then the heart of the indus-
trial revolution in America, a prosperous and expanding town
where his products would sell easily and where he might entice.
some clientele from Providence as well. ' He evidently did well,
for in 1826 he bought out Amos Read's ware room and shop--
which, according to Spaulding's advertisement of July 8, 1826
in the Pawtucket Chronicle, were located " a.few rods east of
the Bridge (over the Blackstone River) ... and shop, a short
distance further south.', At the same time advertised for six.
or eight "Journeymen Cabinet Makers and a lad from 14 to 16
~years of age as an Apprentice.'" Spaulding's business contin-
"ued to prosper until 1839, when ill health forced him to give

it up and move back to the family homestead in Plainfield; '
- where he died in 1870.

e (See Continuation Sheet # 4)
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Spaulding was a contemporary of the locally noted master
builder Clark Sayles. He was also one of the fifteen charter
members of the Pawtucket Congregational Society, which on its
founding in 1828, was the first Congregational Society in the
Village of Pawtucket. (Pawtucket, at this time and until the
agreement of 1862, was a part of Massachusetts). Spaulding is
mentioned in Wendell D. Garrett's article, '"Providence cabinet
makers, chairmakers, upholsterers, and allied craftsmen, 1756-
1838" (Antiques, October, 1966), as one of a large group of
recently recognized cabinet makers who worked in and around
Providence following the shift of political, commercial, and
educational leadership within Rhode Island from Newport to
Providence in the wake of the Revolutionary War.

To some extent. at least Joseph Spaulding was involved in
the actual design and building of his house. Evidence of his
skill as a cabinetmaker can be seen throughout the house. The
front staircase in particular, bears witness to his craft in
the way the stairs are bevelled and framed into the string courses
at an angle, in the use of the fine curly maple for the treads |
(instead of for its decorative value in a piece of furniture),
and in the various curving lines of the staircase itself, the
baseboard, and the arching hand rail. The fine details of the
southwest parlor -- particularly the mantel, the complex moldings
of the door panels, and the inside shutters -- and the original
built-in clothes closet upstairs are also mute testimony to
Spaulding's skill and thoughtfulness as a "carpenter-builder."

Elias Tingley, a carpenter and builder who came from
Cumberland in 1832 to help rebuild the Main Street Bridge,
bought Spaulding's house from him in 18389 and promptly sold
half of it -- specifically, the eastern half of the house, the
use of the front hall, and the northern half of the cellar --
to his son-in-law, blacksmith, Hiram Carter. This division.
of the house accounts for a number of the alterations in the
main house previously described: the relocation of the cellar
stairs and the partition added on the second floor behind the
chimney stack.

(See Continuation Sheet #5)
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The house remained in the Tingley family until 1918, when
it was purchased by Frederick Ratcliffe, whose grand-daughter
now resides there with her husband. The Johnsons, with the
advice and assistance of restoration housewright Gene Cadorette
(coincidentally, also of Cumberland, Rhode Island) have thought-
fully and carefully restored the house to its present fine con-
dition, a condition Joseph Spaulding would have recognized
and approved, and one which strongly commends the house for entry
on the National Register. .
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3.) Pawtucket Chronicle (Pawtucket, Massachusetts) 1826-1839

| assim

4.) Pawtucket, Rhode Island, Probate and hand Records.

(In City Clerk's Office, Pawtucket, Massachusetts)
1863-1918 passim.

5.) "Records of the Pawtucket Congregational Society"
(Handwritten manuscript in possession of the Pawtucket
Congregational Church, beginning February 2, 1828).

6.) Spaulding, Charles Warren, A. M. : The Spaulding Memorial

(American Publishers' Association, Chicago, 1897).

(Deed Records, Taunton, Mass. Book 122-00 555-56
August 21, 1827 $250 lot at corner of South and
Robinson Streets from Dan (iel) Robinson)

Probate Records, Taunton -- 6k 80 p. 483 quince trees
mentioned (% quinces left to Mary Munroe by father)



